
 
March 3, 2020 
 
Re: #20ITB011620K-CRB, MALSR Light Lane Obstruction Clearing at Fulton County 
Airport-Brown Field 
 
Dear Bidders: 
 
Attached is one (1) copy of Addendum 3, hereby made a part of the above-referenced 
Invitation to Bid (ITB). 
 
Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions in the ITB referenced above remain 
unchanged and in full force and effect. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Craig R. Bogan 
 
Craig R. Bogan 
Assistant Purchasing Agent 
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This Addendum forms a part of the contract documents and modifies the original 
ITB documents as noted below: 
 
Please note: 

 
Bid Due Date 
 
The bid opening date has been changed to Tuesday, March 10, 2020 at 11:00 
AM EST. 
 
Section 2 – Bid Form 
 
The revised Bid Form in Addendum 3 replaces the original Bid Form in its 
entirety.  The following changes have been made: 
 
 Additions:  
 C-102 – Installation and Removal of Silt Fence 
 T-901 – Permanent Seeding 
 
Section 4 – Scope of Work and Technical Specifications; Section 3 
 
The following Technical Specifications have been added: 
 
 C-102 – Temp Air-Water-Soil-Siltration Control (C102-1 to C102-4) 
 T-901 – Seeding (T-901-1 to T-901-6) 
 
Drawing Sheets 
 
Revised drawing sheet attachments GN-1 & TC-1 dated 03/02/20 in this 
addendum, replaces original drawing sheets GN-1 & TC-1 that was issued with 
the bid documents on 01/31/20. 
 
Questions & Answers 

 
Question #1: Can we use mechanized equipment (steel cables) to haul out of the 

wetlands? 
Answer #1: The use of steel cables to haul the cut trees and slash out of the protected 

areas (wetlands and stream buffers) would be a land-disturbing activity that 
is not allowed. 
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Question #2: Can we use the access road through the wetland? 
Answer #2: Please refer to the drawing labeled “Overall Tree Clearing Plan.”  The use 

of mechanized equipment is a land-disturbing activity that is not allowed 
within the boundaries of the wetland (shaded as “Wetlands Boundary” in 
the drawing legend), including the portion that is not forested.   

 
 
Question #3: Who is responsible for the trash in the clearing area? 
Answer #3: Removal of non-vegetative materials (i.e., trash; rubbish) is not part of the 

Contract scope.  Removal of slash (i.e., tree branches) is included in the 
Contract scope. 

 
Question #4: Will all clearing areas be accessible by tractor trailers? 
Answer #4: Access through and parking on state and locally-owned roadways would be 

subject to authorization by those jurisdictions.  Access to the non-regulated 
portions of the Airport would be subject to authorization by the Airport and 
would require the Contractor to restore all disturbed areas back to their 
original condition. 

 
Question #5: What was the decision on leaving chips or mulched debris?   
Answer #5: All vegetative debris including wood chips is to be removed from the 

regulated portions of the project area (i.e., the wetland and the stream 
buffers) rather than being spread as mulch within the project boundaries.  
Spreading mulch in the non-regulated portions of the project is authorized 
up to a depth of 3-inches. 

 
Question #6: Can trees be pushed over (unearthed) or does everything need to be sub 

ground? 
Answer #6: Trees are to be cut to ground level.  Trees shall not be pushed over.  There 

shall be no grubbing of tree stumps and/or roots within the project area. 
 
Question #7: Please direct us to where in the specifications the allowed mulch depth 

can be found. 
Answer #7: Mulch depth is not included in the specifications for the regulated portions 

of the project. If spreading mulch in the non-regulated portions of the 
project areas, a maximum depth of 3-inches is authorized by the Airport. 

 
Question #8: In the protected areas, how low do we have to cut the stumps since we 

can’t take equipment in there? 
Answer #8: Chain saws can be used to cut the trees down to 2 inches above the 

ground level. 
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Question #9: To get debris out of the protected areas, can we winch/drag debris using 

equipment positioned outside the protected areas? 
Answer #9: The use of steel cables or other means to haul/drag the cut trees and slash 

out of the protected areas (wetlands and stream buffers) would be a land-
disturbing activity that is not allowed. 

 
Question #10: Since you’re adding a second mobilization line item, will you be breaking 

up the project into two separate jobs? 
Answer #10: The project will not be broken into two separate jobs. All anticipated 

mobilization costs should be put into the mobilization line item. According 
to the specifications, ‘Mobilization shall be limited to 10% of total project 
costs.’ 

 
Question #11: Since the timeline of additional work is uncertain due to permits, will you 

allow for one payment upon completion of the first mobilization’s work, 
and a second payment upon total completion? 

Answer #11: There will be no additional work.   
 
Question #12: Can we attach our own lock to any gates so that we may have 24hour 

access to the site?  Locks will be attached to existing locks so the 
property owners may still have access. 

Answer #12: At all times, Gate access shall be controlled and coordinated with Airport 
authorities. 

 
Question #13: In the area managed by Cobb County, can we remove a section of 

fence (if we will replace it) next to the field for access around the temp 
pipes and structures by the Cobb county gate? 

Answer #13: No, Cobb County and Fulton County Airport authorities will provide 
alternative access to the project site. 

 
Question #14: Please provide an updated drawing for the work that can be started 

immediately. 
Answer #14: Please refer to the attached drawing labeled “Overall Tree Clearing Plan. 

(TC-1)” [Addendum4] The initial phase of the Work will consist of cutting 
and removing the trees within the 2.8-acre unregulated portion of the 
MALSR light lane (see areas hatched in green on the drawing).  There 
shall be no cutting of trees outside of the MALSR light lane and no access 
by mechanized equipment outside of the MALSR light lane during the 
initial phase of the work. 

 
Question #15: What treatment is expected of the stumps, exactly?  What about debris 

resulting from the stumps? 
Answer #15: Trees are to be cut to 2 inches above the ground level.  Stumps are to 

remain in place. 
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Question #16: What is the expected finish of the project?  (Woodchips, stumps, grass, 
mow‐able surface, Bush‐hog‐able surface, etc.)  In what areas do the 
expected finishes apply? 

Answer #16: Stumps are to remain in place.  Wood chips and other vegetative debris 
are to be removed from the protected portions of the project area. 

 
Question #17: Specifically, with regard to creeks, the Chattahoochee River, and 

wetlands, and areas adjacent, what precautions are envisioned 
regarding environmental protection?  To the degree that we must 
follow the contract documents, must we always follow the strictest 
guidelines, or the least stringent, or must clarification be sought from 
relevant governing bodies during completion of the contract? 

Answer #17: The initial phase(area of TC-1 highlighted with green hatching) of the 
project shall avoid access through and avoidance of all waters of the U.S. 
and State buffers as depicted on the contract documents. 

 
Question #18: I understand that wheeled and tracked vehicles aren’t permitted within 

the buffers.  Assuming those vehicles are used elsewhere, what 
precautions are expected for erosion and sedimentation control? 

Answer #18: Refer to the Contract specifications for standard erosion and 
sedimentation control measures in Section 4 – Scope of Work, Section 
1060-1 thru 1060-3. 

 
Question #19: Assuming that the contractor determines that a 7460 permit is required 

for compliance reasons, will any portions of the project be delayed until 
the FAA approves/reviews the permits? 

Answer #19: The contractor shall coordinate approval of 7460 permits with the FAA 
prior to construction activities.   

 
Question #20: Will the airport or Fulton County provide training for employees 

regarding the proper means of communication (frequency and 
protocol, etc.)  to Tower and Ground?  If so, which employees must be 
trained prior to beginning work? Are there badging requirements for 
use of radios? 

Answer #20: A pre-construction meeting will be conducted to discuss details of all 
airport requirements and standards for construction. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



#20ITB011620K-CRB, MALSR Light Lane Obstruction Clearing at Fulton County 
Airport-Brown Field                                                
March 3, 2020 
  
 
Question #21: Should the contractor interface with the Corp of engineers directly 

regarding permitting?  Are there any entities that the county believes a 
contractor should work with to secure permits?  For example, should 
the contractor interface with GA EPD , Dept’ of forestry, or other state 
organizations regarding compliance with erosion and sedimentation 
control measures that may be applicable during the envisioned scope? 

Answer #21: The Contractor shall comply with all conditions of a Clean Water Act 
Section 404 permit and a State Buffer Variance, both of which will be 
obtained by the Airport. 

 
Question #22: If the answer to any of the above is yes, should we include any 

additional requirements, if any, in the bid?  In other words, should we 
familiarize ourselves with requirements ahead of time and address 
those issues prior? 

Answer #22: The Contractor shall be prohibited from conducting any activities in the 
Chattahoochee River and its vegetated buffer or in the portion of the 
wetland located within the MALSR light lane during the initial phase of 
the Work.  A copy of the Clean Water Act Section 404 permit and the 
State Buffer Variance will be provided to the Contractor upon issuance of 
the Notice to Proceed for the second phase of the Work.  Please refer to 
the Contract specifications for additional requirements. 

 
Question #23: Apart from state and federal requirements as outlined above, are there 

peripheral organizations whose concerns should be addressed in our 
bid?  Assuming the answer is no, are any potential delays caused by 
peripheral organizations going to trigger an extension of the contract? 

Answer #23: The answer is no to both questions. 
 
Question #24: In the event that, either because of environmental concerns, or because 

the soft ground makes progress difficult, the contractor determines that 
the work requires dry ground, will a rain clause of some kind be 
permitted so that the amount of time for project completion is tolled and 
extended by some amount for each day of rain? 

Answer #24: There is allowance for inclement weather detailed in Section 8 - General 
Conditions, 00700-52 to 00700-55. 

 
Question #25: What is the permit status EPD and Army Corp.? 
Answer #25: EPD and Army Corp permitting is ongoing and status is to be provided at 

a later date. 
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Question #26: Is mobilization and demobilization charges allowed for stop work orders 
due to permitting? 

Answer #26: The project will not be broken into two separate jobs. All anticipated 
mobilization costs should be put into the mobilization line item. According 
to the specifications, ‘Mobilization shall be limited to 10% of total project 
costs.’ 

 
Question #27: If standing water is present, is work permissible or wait until water 

recedes? 
Answer #27: There is allowance for inclement weather and unsuitable construction 

conditions detailed in Section 8 - General Conditions, 00700-52 to 
00700-55.  

 
Question #28: Is this just for tree removal or is mowing grass in right of way required? 
Answer #28: This contract is mainly for tree clearing and does not include mowing of 

grass. 
 
Question #29: How will the contractor bring equipment in on the Lee Industrial Blvd 

(Cobb County) side of the project? 
Answer #29: Access through and parking on state and locally-owned roadways would 

be subject to authorization by those jurisdictions.  Access to the non-
regulated portions of the Airport would be subject to authorization by the 
Airport and would require the Contractor to restore all disturbed areas 
back to their original condition. 

 
Question #30: It is my understanding, in reading through the contract documents, that 

bidders are NOT required to hold any specific licenses, in order to 
perform this work (specifically a Georgia Utility Contractor’s License, 
Georgia General Contractors License, or Georgia Professional 
License). Is this correct? 

Answer #30: Yes, a Georgia Utility Contractor’s License, Georgia General Contractors 
License, or Georgia Professional License will not be required to bid on 
this project. 

 
Question #31: Who is responsible for acquiring and paying for the Army Core of 

Engineers permit? 
Answer #31: Fulton County Airport is acquiring the Army Corps permit. 
 
Question #32: What is the anticipated date of acquiring the permit? 
Answer #32: We anticipate that it could take up to 180 days to get the permit, 

depending on the results of environmental investigations. 
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Question #33: When is the proposed/anticipated project start and completion date? 
Answer #33: The anticipated project start date for the MALSR Light Lane (non-

protected area) is immediate; and for the protected areas will be after a 
permit is obtained which is to be determined. 

 
Question #34: What is the permit requirement for working in Cobb County? 
Answer #34: Fulton County Airport includes easements in Cobb County. Tree 

clearing for transportation safety purposes on land owned by Cobb 
County would be exempt from requirements under the Cobb 
County tree ordinance.  Fulton County Airport Authorities will help 
coordinate all clearing activities on Cobb County and adjacent 
Properties. 

 
Question #35: Is Cobb County informed as to the scope of work and the awarded 

Contractor will be requesting a permit? 
Answer #35: Fulton County Airport has coordinated project scope with Cobb 

County authorities. 
 
Question #36: Typically, the City of Atlanta requires tree cutting permits for trees with a 

DBH of 8”, have they been informed of this project? 
Answer #36: Fulton County Airport is not located within the city of Atlanta; it is 

owned by Fulton County. Tree clearing for transportation safety 
purposes on land owned by Fulton County would be exempt from 
requirements under the Fulton County tree ordinance. 

 
Question #37: Since trees will be cut and removed in the buffer zones, is there a 

requirement for erosion control measures to be installed? 
Answer #37: Yes. An Erosion, Sedimentation, and Pollution Control Plan will be 

required as part of the NPDES Notice of Intent for the project since 
the project area is greater than one acre. A site specific planting 
plan will be required for protected (buffer & wetland) areas. The 
planting plan will be provided after the permits are issued by the 
respective agencies. 

 
Question #38: The limits of clearing; towards the East of Lee Industrial Blvd indicated 

tree removal in front of the current buildings, have the Owners of this 
property been advised and approved of said work? 

Answer #38: All clearing activities will be coordinated by Fulton County Airport 
Authorities prior to clearing activities. 

 
Question #39: Is trash removal in the scope of work? 
Answer #39: Removal of non-vegetative materials (i.e., trash; rubbish) is not part 

of the contract scope. 
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Question #40: There is an encampment of homeless to the south of the limits of 
clearing. Will the County deal with trash and removal of the 
encampment? 

Answer #40: Removal of non-vegetative materials (i.e., trash; rubbish) is not part 
of the contract scope. 

 
Question #41: Who is responsible for surveying the Limits of clearing and buffer 

zones? 
Answer #41: Michael Baker International will provide the contractor with 

coordinates to allow staking of protected areas and clearing 
limits. 

 
Question #42: Will there be a buffer of trees remaining on MLK Blvd? 
Answer #42: Any trees that are not shown to be removed on drawing TC-1 shall 

remain. 
 
Question #43: In the Invitation to Bid document under Scope of Work, Division of Work 

Section 01 10 00 is sited but does not appear to part of the downloaded 
bid documents. Please clarify. 

Answer #43:  There is no Section 01 10 00, but there is a ‘01010 – Summary of 
Work’ in the Section 4- Scope of Work & Technical Specifications; 
Part 2-General Requirements. 
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDUM NO. 3 

   
The undersigned Bidder acknowledges receipt of this Addendum by returning 
one (1) copy of this Acknowledgement form with the bid submittal package to the 
Department of Purchasing & Contract Compliance, Fulton County Public Safety 
Building, 130 Peachtree Street, S.W., Suite 1168, Atlanta, Georgia 30303 by the 
ITB due date and time Tuesday, March 10, 2020 at 11:00 a.m. 
 
 
This is to acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 3, _________ day of 
____________, 2020. 
 
________________________________ 
Legal Name of Bidder 
 
       
________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
 
________________________________ 
Title 
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BID FORM 

 
Submitted To:  Fulton County Government 
 
Submitted By:  __________________________________________ 
 
For: #20ITB011620K-CRB, MALSR Light Lane Obstruction Clearing at Fulton County 

Airport-Brown Field 
 
Submitted on _____________________ 20__ 
 
The undersigned, as Bidder, hereby declares that the only person or persons interested in the 
Bid as principal or principals is or are named herein and that no other person than herein 
mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in the Contract to be entered into; that this Bid is made 
without connection with any other person, company or parties making a Bid; and that it is in all 
respects fair and in good faith without collusion or fraud. 
 
The Bidder further declares that he has examined the site of the work and informed himself fully 
in regard to all conditions pertaining to the place where the work is to be done; that he has 
examined the Drawings and Specifications for the work and contractual documents relative 
thereto, and has read all instructions to Bidders and General Conditions furnished prior to the 
openings of bids; that he has satisfied himself relative to the work to be performed. 
 
The Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to contract with the Board of 
Commissioners of Fulton County, Atlanta, Georgia, in the form of contact specified, to furnish all 
necessary materials, equipment, machinery, tools, apparatus, means of transportation and labor 
necessary, and to complete the construction of the work in full and complete accordance with 
the shown, noted, and reasonably intended requirements of the Specifications and Contract 
Documents to the full and entire satisfaction of the Board of Commissioners of Fulton County, 
Atlanta, Georgia, with a definite understanding that no money will be allowed for extra work 
except as set forth in the attached General Conditions and Contract Documents for the following 
prices. 
 
THE TOTAL BASE BID IS THE AMOUNT UPON WHICH THE BIDDER WILL BE FORMALLY 
EVALUATED AND WHICH WILL BE USED TO DETERMINE THE LOWEST RESPONSIBLE 
BIDDER. 
 
The total base bid may not be withdrawn or modified for a period of sixty (60) days following the 
receipt of bids. 
 
TOTAL BASE BID AMOUNT (Do not include any Bid Alternates) 
 
$             
(Dollar Amount In Numbers) 
 
             
(Dollar Amount in Words) 
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The Bidder agrees hereby to commence work under this Contract, with adequate personnel and 
equipment, on a date to be specified in a written “Notice to Proceed” from the County.   
 
The Bidder declares that he understands that the quantities shown for the unit prices items are 
subject to either increase or decrease, and that should the quantities of any of the items of work 
be increased, the Bidder proposes to do the additional work at the unit prices stated herein; and 
should the quantities be decreased, the Bidder also understands that payment will be made on 
the basis of actual quantities at the unit price bid and will make no claim for anticipated profits 
for any decrease in quantities; and that actual quantities will be determined upon completion of 
work, at which time adjustments will be made to the contract amount by direct increase or 
decrease. 
 
TOTAL BASE BID AMOUNT  
 
Item 

# 
Spec 
No. 

Item Description Est. 
Quantity 

Item 
Unit 

Unit Price 
TOTAL 
COST 

1 C-105 MOBILIZATION 1 LUMP 
SUM 

 
 

2 C-102 
INSTALLATION AND 
REMOVAL OF SILT FENCE 

2,300 
LIN. 
FT. 

 
 

3 P-151A 
CLEARING OUTSIDE 
BUFFERS 

11 ACRE 
 

 

4 P-151B CLEARING INSIDE BUFFERS 6 ACRE
 

 

5 T-901 PERMANENT SEEDING 11 ACRE 
 

 

TOTAL BASE BID  (lines 1-5)     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Bidder furthermore agrees that, in the case of a failure on his part to execute the Contract 
Agreement and Bonds within ten days after receipt of conformed contract documents for 
execution, the Bid Bond accompanying his bid and the monies payable thereon shall be paid 
into the funds of the Owner as liquidated damages for such failure. 
 
Enclosed is a Bid Bond in the approved form, in the sum of _____________________________ 
_______________________Dollars ($   ) according to the conditions of 
“Instructions to Bidders” and provisions thereof.  
 
The undersigned acknowledges receipt of the following addenda (list by the number and date 
appearing on each addendum) and thereby affirms that its Bid considers and incorporates any 
modifications to the originally issued Bidding Documents included therein. 
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ADDENDUM #     DATED    
 
ADDENDUM #     DATED    
 
ADDENDUM #     DATED    
 
ADDENDUM #     DATED    
 
 
BIDDER:            
 

Signed by:           
    [Type or Print Name] 

Title:            
 

Business Address:          
         
                   
   
                   
 

Business Phone:             
 
Email Address:       ____________________________________________ 

 
Note:  If the Bidder is a corporation, the Bid shall be signed by an officer of the corporation; if a 
partnership, it shall be signed by a partner.  If signed by others, authority for signature shall be 
attached. 
 
The full name and addresses of persons or parties interested in the foregoing Bid, as principals, 
are as follows:  
 
 

Name Address 

              

              

              

              

              

              

              

 
END OF SECTION 
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SECTION 4 
 
 

PART 3 
 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 

         Page Numbers 
C-102  Temp Air-Water-Soil-Siltration Control  C102-1 to C-102-4 
C-105  Mobilization      C-105 
P-151  Clearing and Grubbing    P-151-1 to P-151-4 
T-901  Seeding      T-901-1 to T-901-6 



 C-102-1 
MALSR Light Lane Obstruction Clearing 174389 / December 2019 
Fulton County Airport – Brown Field 

ITEM C-102 

TEMPORARY AIR AND WATER POLLUTION, 
SOIL EROSION, AND SILTATION CONTROL 

DESCRIPTION 

102-1   This item shall consist of temporary control measures as shown on the plans or as 
ordered by the Resident Project Representative (RPR) during the life of a contract to 
control  pollution of air and water, soil erosion, and siltation through the use of silt 
fences, berms, dikes, dams, sediment basins, fiber mats, gravel, mulches, grasses, slope 
drains, and other erosion control devices or methods.

  Temporary erosion control shall be in accordance with the approved erosion control 
plan; the approved Construction Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP) and AC 150/5370-2, 
Operational Safety on Airports During Construction. The temporary erosion control 
measures contained herein shall be coordinated with the permanent erosion control 
measures specified as part of this contract to the extent practical to assure economical, 
effective, and continuous erosion control throughout the construction period. 

  Temporary control may include work outside the construction limits such as borrow pit 
operations, equipment and material storage sites, waste areas, and temporary plant sites. 

  Temporary control measures shall be designed, installed and maintained to minimize 
the creation of wildlife attractants that have the potential to attract hazardous wildlife 
on or near public-use airports.

MATERIALS 

102-2.1  GRASS. Grass that will not compete with the grasses sown later for permanent cover 
per Item T-901 shall be a quick-growing species (such as ryegrass) suitable to the area 
providing a temporary cover. Selected grass species shall not create a wildlife 
attractant.   

102-2.2  MULCHES. Mulches may be hay, straw, fiber mats, netting, bark, wood chips, or 
other suitable material reasonably clean and free of noxious weeds and deleterious 
materials per Item T-908.  Mulches shall not create a wildlife attractant. 

102-2.3  FERTILIZER. Fertilizer shall be a standard commercial grade as shown on the plans 
and shall conform to all federal and state regulations and to the standards of the 
Association of Official Agricultural Chemists. 

102-2.4  SLOPE DRAINS. Slope drains may be constructed of pipe, fiber mats, rubble, 
concrete, asphalt, or other materials that will adequately control erosion. 
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102-2.5  SILT FENCE. Silt fence shall consist of polymeric filaments which are formed into a 
stable network such that filaments retain their relative positions. Synthetic filter fabric 
shall contain ultraviolet ray inhibitors and stabilizers to provide a minimum of six 
months of expected usable construction life.  Silt fence shall meet the requirements of 
ASTM D6461. 

102-2.6  OTHER. All other materials shall meet commercial grade standards and shall be 
approved by the RPR before being incorporated into the project. 

CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS 

102-3.1  GENERAL. In the event of conflict between these requirements and pollution control 
laws, rules, or regulations of other federal, state, or local agencies, the more restrictive 
laws, rules, or regulations shall apply. 

  The RPR shall be responsible for assuring compliance to the extent that construction 
practices, construction operations, and construction work are involved. 

102-3.2  SCHEDULE. Prior to the start of construction, the Contractor shall submit schedules 
in accordance with the approved Construction Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP) and the 
plans for accomplishment of temporary and permanent erosion control work for 
clearing and grubbing; grading; construction; paving; and structures at watercourses. 
The Contractor shall also submit a proposed method of erosion and dust control on haul 
roads and borrow pits and a plan for disposal of waste materials. Work shall not be 
started until the erosion control schedules and methods of operation for the applicable 
construction have been accepted by the RPR. 

102-3.3  CONSTRUCTION DETAILS. The Contractor will be required to incorporate all 
permanent erosion control features into the project at the earliest practicable time as 
outlined in the plans and approved CSPP. Except where future construction operations 
will damage slopes, the Contractor shall perform the permanent seeding and mulching 
and other specified slope protection work in stages, as soon as substantial areas of 
exposed slopes can be made available. Temporary erosion and pollution control 
measures will be used to correct conditions that develop during construction that were 
not foreseen during the design stage; that are needed prior to installation of permanent 
control features; or that are needed temporarily to control erosion that develops during 
normal construction practices but are not associated with permanent control features 
on the project. 

  Where erosion may be a problem, schedule and perform clearing and grubbing 
operations so that grading operations and permanent erosion control features can follow 
immediately if project conditions permit. Temporary erosion control measures are 
required if permanent measures cannot immediately follow grading operations. The 
RPR shall limit the area of clearing and grubbing, excavation, borrow, and embankment 
operations in progress, commensurate with the Contractor’s capability and progress in 
keeping the finish grading, mulching, seeding, and other such permanent control 



 C-102-3 
MALSR Light Lane Obstruction Clearing 174389 / December 2019 
Fulton County Airport – Brown Field 

measures current with the accepted schedule. If seasonal limitations make such 
coordination unrealistic, temporary erosion control measures shall be taken 
immediately to the extent feasible and justified as directed by the RPR. 

  The Contractor shall provide immediate permanent or temporary pollution control 
measures to minimize contamination of adjacent streams or other watercourses, lakes, 
ponds, or other areas of water impoundment as directed by the RPR. If temporary 
erosion and pollution control measures are required due to the Contractor’s negligence, 
carelessness, or failure to install permanent controls as a part of the work as scheduled 
or directed by the RPR, the work shall be performed by the Contractor and the cost 
shall be incidental to this item. 

  The RPR may increase or decrease the area of erodible earth material that can be 
exposed at any time based on an analysis of project conditions. 

  The erosion control features installed by the Contractor shall be maintained by the 
Contractor during the construction period. 

  Provide temporary structures whenever construction equipment must cross 
watercourses at frequent intervals. Pollutants such as fuels, lubricants, bitumen, raw 
sewage, wash water from concrete mixing operations, and other harmful materials shall 
not be discharged into any waterways, impoundments or into natural or manmade 
channels. 

102-3.4  INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL OF SILT FENCE.  Silt 
fences shall extend a minimum of 18 inches (45 cm) and a minimum of 30 inches (76 
cm) above the ground surface. Posts shall be set no more than 6 feet (2 m) on center. 
Filter fabric shall be cut from a continuous roll to the length required minimizing joints 
where possible. When joints are necessary, the fabric shall be spliced at a support post 
with a minimum 18-inch (450-mm) overlap and securely sealed. A trench shall be 
excavated approximately 6 inches (150 mm) deep by 2 inches (50 mm) wide on the 
upslope side of the silt fence. The trench shall be backfilled and the soil compacted 
over the silt fence fabric. The Contractor shall remove and dispose of silt that 
accumulates during construction and prior to establishment of permanent erosion 
control. The fence shall be maintained in good working condition until permanent 
erosion control is established. Silt fence shall be removed upon approval of the RPR. 

METHOD OF MEASUREMENT 

102-4.1  Temporary erosion and pollution control work required will be performed as scheduled 
or directed by the RPR. Completed and accepted work will be measured as follows: 

a.  Installation and removal of silt fence will be measured by the linear foot (meter).

102-4.2  Control work performed for protection of construction areas outside the construction 
limits, such as borrow and waste areas, haul roads, equipment and material storage 
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sites, and temporary plant sites, will not be measured and paid for directly but shall be 
considered as a subsidiary obligation of the Contractor. 

BASIS OF PAYMENT 

102-5.1  Accepted quantities of temporary water pollution, soil erosion, and siltation control 
work ordered by the RPR and measured as provided in paragraph 102-4.1 will be paid 
for under: 

Item C-102 Installation and removal of silt fence per linear feet 

  Where other directed work falls within the specifications for a work item that has a 
contract price, the units of work shall be measured and paid for at the contract unit price 
bid for the various items. 

  Temporary control features not covered by contract items that are ordered by the RPR 
will be paid for in accordance with Section 90, paragraph 90-05 Payment for Extra 
Work.

REFERENCES 

The publications listed below form a part of this specification to the extent referenced. The 
publications are referred to within the text by the basic designation only. 

Advisory Circulars (AC) 

AC 150/5200-33 Hazardous Wildlife Attractants on or Near Airports

AC 150/5370-2 Operational Safety on Airports During Construction

ASTM International (ASTM) 

ASTM D6461 Standard Specification for Silt Fence Materials

United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) 

FAA/USDA Wildlife Hazard Management at Airports, A Manual for Airport Personnel 

END OF ITEM C-102 
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ITEM T-901

SEEDING 

DESCRIPTION 

901-1.1 This item shall consist of soil preparation, seeding, fertilizing, liming and rolling the 
areas shown on the plans or as directed by the RPR in accordance with these 
specifications. 

MATERIALS 

901-2.1 SEED. The species and application rates of grass, legume, and cover-crop seed 
furnished shall be those stipulated herein. Seed shall conform to the requirements of 
Federal Specification JJJ-S-181, Federal Specification, Seeds, Agricultural. 

 Seed shall be furnished separately or in mixtures in standard containers labeled in 
conformance with the Agricultural Marketing Service (AMS) Seed Act and applicable 
state seed laws with the seed name, lot number, net weight, percentages of purity and 
of germination and hard seed, and percentage of maximum weed seed content clearly 
marked for each kind of seed. The Contractor shall furnish the RPR duplicate signed 
copies of a statement by the vendor certifying that each lot of seed has been tested by 
a recognized laboratory for seed testing within six (6) months of date of delivery. This 
statement shall include: name and address of laboratory, date of test, lot number for 
each kind of seed, and the results of tests as to name, percentages of purity and of 
germination, and percentage of weed content for each kind of seed furnished, and, in 
case of a mixture, the proportions of each kind of seed. Wet, moldy, or otherwise 
damaged seed will be rejected.  

  Seeds shall be applied as as shown on the plans. Seeding shall be performed during the 
periods shown on the plans, unless otherwise approved by the RPR. 

901-2.2 LIME. Lime shall be ground limestone containing not less than 85% of total 
carbonates, and shall be ground to such fineness that 90% will pass through a No. 20 
(850 μm) mesh sieve and 50% will pass through a No. 100 (150 μm) mesh sieve. 
Coarser material will be acceptable, providing the rates of application are increased to 
provide not less than the minimum quantities and depth specified in the special 
provisions on the basis of the two sieve requirements above. Dolomitic lime or a high 
magnesium lime shall contain at least 10% of magnesium oxide. Lime shall be applied 
at the rate of 4000 pounds per acre. All liming materials shall conform to the 
requirements of ASTM C602.
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901-2.3 FERTILIZER. Fertilizer shall be standard commercial fertilizers supplied separately 
or in mixtures containing the percentages of total nitrogen, available phosphoric acid, 
and water-soluble potash. They shall be applied at the rate and to the depth specified, 
and shall meet the requirements of applicable state laws. They shall be furnished in 
standard containers with name, weight, and guaranteed analysis of contents clearly 
marked thereon. No cyanamide compounds or hydrated lime shall be permitted in 
mixed fertilizers. 

  The fertilizers may be supplied in one of the following forms: 

a. A dry, free-flowing fertilizer suitable for application by a common fertilizer 
spreader;

b.  A finely-ground fertilizer soluble in water, suitable for application by power 
sprayers; or 

   
c.  A granular or pellet form suitable for application by blower equipment. 

Fertilizers shall be commercial fertilizer and shall be spread at the rate of 1000 pounds 
per acre or as shown on the erosion control plans.

901-2.4 SOIL FOR REPAIRS. The soil for fill and topsoiling of areas to be repaired shall be 
at least of equal quality to that which exists in areas adjacent to the area to be repaired. 
The soil shall be relatively free from large stones, roots, stumps, or other materials that 
will interfere with subsequent sowing of seed, compacting, and establishing turf, and 
shall be approved by the RPR before being placed. 

CONSTRUCTION METHODS 

901-3.1 ADVANCE PREPARATION AND CLEANUP. After grading of areas has been 
completed and before applying fertilizer and ground limestone, areas to be seeded shall 
be raked or otherwise cleared of stones larger than 2 inches (50 mm) in any diameter, 
sticks, stumps, and other debris that might interfere with sowing of seed, growth of 
grasses, or subsequent maintenance of grass-covered areas. If any damage by erosion 
or other causes has occurred after the completion of grading and before beginning the 
application of fertilizer and ground limestone, the Contractor shall repair such damage 
include filling gullies, smoothing irregularities, and repairing other incidental damage. 

  An area to be seeded shall be considered a satisfactory seedbed without additional 
treatment if it has recently been thoroughly loosened and worked to a depth of not less 
than 5 inches (125 mm) as a result of grading operations and, if immediately prior to 
seeding, the top 3 inches (75 mm) of soil is loose, friable, reasonably free from large 
clods, rocks, large roots, or other undesirable matter, and if shaped to the required 
grade. 
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  When the area to be seeded is sparsely sodded, weedy, barren and unworked, or packed 
and hard, any grass and weeds shall first be cut or otherwise satisfactorily disposed of, 
and the soil then scarified or otherwise loosened to a depth not less than 5 inches (125 
mm). Clods shall be broken and the top 3 inches (75 mm) of soil shall be worked into 
a satisfactory seedbed by discing, or by use of cultipackers, rollers, drags, harrows, or 
other appropriate means. 

901-3.2 DRY APPLICATION METHOD. 

a.  Liming. Lime shall be applied separately and prior to the application of any 
fertilizer or seed and only on seedbeds that have previously been prepared as 
described above. The lime shall then be worked into the top 3 inches (75 mm) of 
soil after which the seedbed shall again be properly graded and dressed to a smooth 
finish. 

b.  Fertilizing. Following advance preparations and cleanup fertilizer shall be 
uniformly spread at the rate that will provide not less than the minimum quantity 
stated in paragraph 901-2.3.

c.  Seeding. Grass seed shall be sown at the rate specified in paragraph 901-2.1 
immediately after fertilizing.  The fertilizer and seed shall be raked within the depth 
range stated in the special provisions. Seeds of legumes, either alone or in mixtures, 
shall be inoculated before mixing or sowing, in accordance with the instructions of 
the manufacturer of the inoculant. When seeding is required at other than the 
seasons shown on the plans or in the special provisions, a cover crop shall be sown 
by the same methods required for grass and legume seeding. 

d.  Rolling. After the seed has been properly covered, the seedbed shall be 
immediately compacted by means of an approved lawn roller, weighing 40 to 65 
pounds per foot (60 to 97 kg per meter) of width for clay soil (or any soil having a 
tendency to pack), and weighing 150 to 200 pounds per foot (223 to 298 kg per 
meter) of width for sandy or light soils. 

901-3.3 WET APPLICATION METHOD. 

a.  General. The Contractor may elect to apply seed and fertilizer (and lime, if 
required) by spraying them on the previously prepared seedbed in the form of an 
aqueous mixture and by using the methods and equipment described herein. The 
rates of application shall be as specified in the special provisions. 

b.  Spraying equipment. The spraying equipment shall have a container or water tank 
equipped with a liquid level gauge calibrated to read in increments not larger than 
50 gallons (190 liters) over the entire range of the tank capacity, mounted so as to 
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be visible to the nozzle operator. The container or tank shall also be equipped with 
a mechanical power-driven agitator capable of keeping all the solids in the mixture 
in complete suspension at all times until used. 

The unit shall also be equipped with a pressure pump capable of delivering 100 
gallons (380 liters) per minute at a pressure of 100 lb / sq inches (690 kPa). The 
pump shall be mounted in a line that will recirculate the mixture through the tank 
whenever it is not being sprayed from the nozzle. All pump passages and pipe lines 
shall be capable of providing clearance for 5/8 inch (16 mm) solids. The power unit 
for the pump and agitator shall have controls mounted so as to be accessible to the 
nozzle operator. There shall be an indicating pressure gauge connected and 
mounted immediately at the back of the nozzle. 

The nozzle pipe shall be mounted on an elevated supporting stand in such a manner 
that it can be rotated through 360 degrees horizontally and inclined vertically from 
at least 20 degrees below to at least 60 degrees above the horizontal. There shall be 
a quick-acting, three-way control valve connecting the recirculating line to the 
nozzle pipe and mounted so that the nozzle operator can control and regulate the 
amount of flow of mixture delivered to the nozzle. At least three different types of 
nozzles shall be supplied so that mixtures may be properly sprayed over distance 
varying from 20 to 100 feet (6 to 30 m). One shall be a close-range ribbon nozzle, 
one a medium-range ribbon nozzle, and one a long-range jet nozzle. For case of 
removal and cleaning, all nozzles shall be connected to the nozzle pipe by means 
of quick-release couplings. 

In order to reach areas inaccessible to the regular equipment, an extension hose at 
least 50 feet (15 m) in length shall be provided to which the nozzles may be 
connected. 

c.  Mixtures. Lime, if required, shall be applied separately, in the quantity specified, 
prior to the fertilizing and seeding operations. Not more than 220 pounds (100 kg) 
of lime shall be added to and mixed with each 100 gallons (380 liters) of water. 
Seed and fertilizer shall be mixed together in the relative proportions specified, but 
not more than a total of 220 pounds (100 kg) of these combined solids shall be 
added to and mixed with each 100 gallons (380 liters) of water. 

 All water used shall be obtained from fresh water sources and shall be free from 
injurious chemicals and other toxic substances harmful to plant life. The Contractor 
shall identify to the RPR all sources of water at least two (2) weeks prior to use. 
The RPR may take samples of the water at the source or from the tank at any time 
and have a laboratory test the samples for chemical and saline content. The 
Contractor shall not use any water from any source that is disapproved by the RPR 
following such tests. 
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 All mixtures shall be constantly agitated from the time they are mixed until they 
are finally applied to the seedbed. All such mixtures shall be used within two (2) 
hours from the time they were mixed, or they shall be wasted and disposed of at 
approved locations. 

d.  Spraying. Lime, if required, shall be sprayed only upon previously prepared 
seedbeds. After the applied lime mixture has dried, the lime shall be worked into 
the top 3 inches (75 mm), after which the seedbed shall again be properly graded 
and dressed to a smooth finish. 

 Mixtures of seed and fertilizer shall only be sprayed upon previously prepared 
seedbeds on which the lime, if required, shall already have been worked in. The 
mixtures shall be applied by means of a high-pressure spray that shall always be 
directed upward into the air so that the mixtures will fall to the ground like rain in 
a uniform spray. Nozzles or sprays shall never be directed toward the ground in 
such a manner as might produce erosion or runoff. 

 Particular care shall be exercised to ensure that the application is made uniformly 
and at the prescribed rate and to guard against misses and overlapped areas. Proper 
predetermined quantities of the mixture in accordance with specifications shall be 
used to cover specified sections of known area.

 Checks on the rate and uniformity of application may be made by observing the 
degree of wetting of the ground or by distributing test sheets of paper or pans over 
the area at intervals and observing the quantity of material deposited thereon. 

 On surfaces that are to be mulched as indicated by the plans or designated by the 
RPR, seed and fertilizer applied by the spray method need not be raked into the soil 
or rolled. However, on surfaces on which mulch is not to be used, the raking and 
rolling operations will be required after the soil has dried. 

901-3.4 MAINTENANCE OF SEEDED AREAS. The Contractor shall protect seeded areas 
against traffic or other use by warning signs or barricades, as approved by the RPR. 
Surfaces gullied or otherwise damaged following seeding shall be repaired by regrading 
and reseeding as directed. The Contractor shall mow, water as directed, and otherwise 
maintain seeded areas in a satisfactory condition until final inspection and acceptance 
of the work. 

  When either the dry or wet application method outlined above is used for work done 
out of season, it will be required that the Contractor establish a good stand of grass of 
uniform color and density to the satisfaction of the RPR. A grass stand shall be 
considered adequate when bare spots are one square foot (0.01 sq m) or less, randomly 
dispersed, and do not exceed 3% of the area seeded.  
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METHOD OF MEASUREMENT 

901-4.1 The quantity of seeding to be paid for shall be the number of units’ acre measured on 
the ground surface, completed and accepted. 

BASIS OF PAYMENT 

901-5.1 Payment shall be made at the contract unit price per acre (sq m) or fraction thereof, 
which price and payment shall be full compensation for furnishing and placing all 
material and for all labor, equipment, tools, and incidentals necessary to complete the 
work prescribed in this item. 

  Payment will be made under: 

 Item T-901  Permanent Seeding – per acre

REFERENCES 

The publications listed below form a part of this specification to the extent referenced. The 
publications are referred to within the text by the basic designation only. 

ASTM International (ASTM) 

ASTM C602 Standard Specification for Agricultural Liming Materials 

Federal Specifications (FED SPEC) 

FED SPEC JJJ-S-181, Federal Specification, Seeds, Agricultural 

Advisory Circulars (AC) 

AC 150/5200-33 Hazardous Wildlife Attractants on or Near Airports 

FAA/United States Department of Agriculture 

Wildlife Hazard Management at Airports, A Manual for Airport Personnel 

END OF ITEM T-901



GENERAL NOTES

SAFETY AND SECURITY

S-1. THE CONTRACTOR WILL OBTAIN, HAVE KNOWLEDGE OF, AND
INCORPORATE THE FOLLOWING SAFETY PROVISIONS INTO THE
CONSTRUCTION PROJECT:

OPERATIONAL SAFETY ON AIRPORTS DURING
CONSTRUCTION - AC 150/5370-2G
AIRPORT SAFETY SELF-INSPECTION - AC 150/5200-18C
PAINTING, MARKING, AND LIGHTING OF VEHICLES USED ON
AIRPORT - AC 150/5210-5D

S-2. CONTRACTORS SHALL MAINTAIN RADIO COMMUNICATION WITH
AIRPORT GROUND CONTROL AT ALL TIMES DURING
CONSTRUCTION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE WORKING
RADIO(S) ON-SITE AT ALL TIMES DURING CONTRUCTION AND SHALL
ASSIGN RESPONSIBLE PERSONNEL TO CONTINUOUSLY MONITOR
THE GROUND CONTROL FREQUENCY (121.7 MHz). PROVIDE A RADIO
AT EACH SEPARATE WORK LOCATION.

S-3. NOTICE TO AIRMEN (NOTAMS) - THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
SCHEDULE AND PROVIDE THE NECESSARY INFORMATION ON
CONSTRUCTION CONDITIONS SO THAT OWNER CAN ADVISE THE
FLIGHT SERVICE STATION AND ISSUE NOTAM(S) IN ACCORDANCE
WITH ESTABLISHED CRITERIA NO LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO
OPERATION BEGINNING.

S-4. ALL CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC SHALL ENTER AND EXIT THE PROJECT
AREA THROUGH THE PROJECT ACCESS GATES. CONTRACTOR WILL
BE RESPONSIBLE FOR SECURITY OF ALL GATES IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE AIRPORT'S APPROVED SECURITY PROGRAM.

S-5. CONTRACTOR SHALL UTILIZE EXISTING GATES AS TEMPORARY
ACCESS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE. THE CONTRACTOR
SHALL MAN THESE GATES WITH PERSONNEL OR LOCK GATES AT
ALL TIMES DURING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES AND SHALL LOCK
THESE GATES DURING NON-CONSTRUCTION HOURS. THE SECURITY
GUARD SHALL HAVE A CELL PHONE AND OPERATIONAL RADIO. THE
GUARD'S DUTIES SHALL INCLUDE MONITORING TRAFFIC IN AND OUT
OF THE GATE AND PREVENTING UNAUTHORIZED PERSONNEL FROM
ENTERING THE SECURITY AREA.

S-6. AREAS OUTSIDE THE PROJECT LIMITS ARE DESIGNATED AS
RESTRICTED AREAS. THE CONTRACTOR'S FORCES ARE PROHIBITED
FROM ENTERING RESTRICTED AREAS AT ANY TIME, UNLESS
SPECIFICALLY AUTHORIZED BY THE ENGINEER OR AIRPORT
OWNER. NO CONSTRUCTION MAY OCCUR WITHIN A SAFETY AREA
WHILE THE ASSOCIATED RUNWAY OR TAXIWAY IS OPEN FOR
AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS.

S-7. ALL VEHICLES USED ON THE AIRFIELD SHALL MEET AIRPORT
REQUIREMENTS FOR MARKING AND LIGHTING.

S-8. FOR ADDITIONAL SAFETY AND SECURITY REQUIREMENTS, SEE
SPECIFICATIONS (SECTION 01030).

S-9. OPEN TRENCHES OR EXCAVATIONS ARE NOT PERMITTED WITHIN
THE RSA OR TSA WHILE THE RUNWAY OR TAXIWAY IS OPEN. IF
POSSIBLE, BACKFILL TRENCHES BEFORE THE RUNWAY OR
TAXIWAY IS OPENED.  IF THE RUNWAY OR TAXIWAY MUST BE
OPENED BEFORE EXCAVATIONS ARE BACKFILLED, COVER THE
EXCAVATIONS APPROPRIATELY. COVERING FOR OPEN TRENCHES
MUST BE DESIGNED TO ALLOW THE SAFE OPERATION OF THE
HEAVIEST AIRCRAFT OPERATING ON THE RUNWAY OR TAXIWAY
ACROSS THE TRENCH WITHOUT DAMAGE TO THE AIRCRAFT.

S-10. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROMINENTLY MARK OPEN TRENCHES
AND EXCAVATIONS AT THE CONSTRUCTION SITE WITH RED OR
ORANGE FLAGS, AS APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER, AND LIGHT
THEM WITH RED LIGHTS DURING HOURS OF RESTRICTED VISIBILITY
OR DARKNESS.

S-11. SOIL EROSION MUST BE CONTROLLED TO MAINTAIN SAFETY AREA
STANDARDS.  THE SAFETY AREAS MUST BE CLEARED AND GRADED
AND HAVE NO POTENTIALLY HAZARDOUS RUTS, HUMPS,
DEPRESSIONS, OR OTHER SURFACE VARIATIONS, AND CAPABLE,
UNDER DRY CONDITIONS, OF SUPPORTING SNOW REMOVAL
EQUIPMENT, AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND FIRE FIGHTING EQUIPMENT,
AND THE OCCASIONAL PASSAGE OF AIRCRAFT WITHOUT CAUSING
STRUCTURAL DAMAGE TO THE AIRCRAFT.

HAUL ROUTES, STAGING AREAS, AND CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES

C-1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONDUCT HIS CONSTRUCTION
OPERATIONS AS SHOWN ON THE PROJECT LAYOUT AND SAFETY
PLAN AND HIS APPROVED PHASING PLAN. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
COORDINATE ALL CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES WITH THE ENGINEER
TO MINIMIZE DISRUPTION TO AIRPORT OPERATIONS. IT IS THE
CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH
SAFETY REQUIREMENTS AND TO MINIMIZE INTERFERENCE TO
AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS DURING CONSTRUCTION.

C-2. THE CONTRACTOR'S STAGING AREA AND HAUL ROUTES SHOWN ON
THE PLANS ARE GENERAL AND FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES
ONLY. THE ACTUAL SIZE AND LOCATION OF STAGING AREAS AND
HAUL ROUTES WILL BE APPROVED BY OWNER PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION.

C-3. ALL EXISTING GRASSED AREAS WHICH ARE DISTURBED AS PART OF
THE CONTRACTOR'S ACCESS ROAD, CONTRACTOR'S STAGING
AREA, AND HAUL ROUTES SHALL BE RESTORED TO THEIR ORIGINAL
CONDITION AFTER COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT. IN ADDITION, ALL
EXISTING ROADS, APRONS AND TAXIWAYS THAT WILL BE USED AS
THE CONTRACTOR'S HAUL ROUTE SHALL BE MAINTAINED DURING
CONSTRUCTION AND RESTORED TO THEIR PRE-CONSTRUCTION
CONDITION. NO SEPARATE MEASUREMENT OR PAYMENT WILL BE
MADE FOR THIS ITEM.

C-4. EXCEPT WHERE DESIGNATED ON PLANS OR AS AUTHORIZED BY
ENGINEER, CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE ALLOWED TO USE ANY OF
THE EXISTING RUNWAYS, TAXIWAYS, OR RAMPS AS PART OF THE
HAUL ROAD.

C-5. ACTIVE TAXIWAYS, RUNWAYS, AND RAMPS SHALL BE KEPT FREE OF
ALL DEBRIS, DIRT, ETC., AT ALL TIMES. ANY SPILLAGE OF SOIL,
DEBRIS OR OTHER MATERIALS SHALL BE CLEANED UP
IMMEDIATELY USING APPROPRIATE POWER SWEEPERS, BLOWERS
OR OTHER APPROVED EQUIPMENT, BY THE CONTRACTOR AFTER
PROMPT NOTIFICATION BY THE ENGINEER OR AIRPORT OWNER.
DUST GENERATED DUE TO CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES SHALL BE
ADEQUATELY CONTROLLED AT ALL TIMES. A PROGRAM OF
REGULAR RUNWAY AND TAXIWAY INSPECTION SHALL BE
IMPLEMENTED BY THE CONTRACTOR, AND COORDINATED WITH THE
AIRPORT OWNER, AND THE ENGINEER.

C-6. ALL EQUIPMENT MUST BE RETURNED TO THE STAGING AREA AT
THE END OF EACH WORK DAY AND WHEN NOT ENGAGED IN THE
CONSTRUCTION DURING NON-WORKING DAYS AND NIGHTS. OWNER
WILL DESIGNATE AREAS FOR CONTRACTOR'S EMPLOYEES' AUTO
PARKING.

C-7. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATING AND
PROVIDING ALL PERMANENT AND TEMPORARY UTILITY
CONNECTIONS TO THE STAGING AREA.

C-8. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN ALL AIRFIELD SAFETY DEVICES,
SUCH AS STAKED LIMIT LINES, FOR THE DURATION OF THE
PROJECT AS REQUIRED. DAMAGED STAKES OR FLAGGING SHALL BE
REPLACED IMMEDIATELY. CONTRACTOR TO SUBMIT PLAN SHOWING
LOCATION OF LIMIT LINES FOR EACH PHASE AND FOR PROJECT
DURATION TO THE ENGINEER FOR APPROVAL.

C-9. BURNING OF DEBRIS WILL NOT BE ALLOWED ON AIRPORT
PROPERTY.

C-10. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTROL DUST AT AN ACCEPTABLE LEVEL.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE REQUIRED TO KEEP A WATER TRUCK
AT THE PROJECT SITE DURING HAULING OPERATIONS. IF ONE
WATER TRUCK IS INADEQUATE TO CONTROL DUST PROPERLY, THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL FURNISH THE PROPER NUMBER OF TRUCKS
OR OTHER SUITABLE MEANS TO ACCOMPLISH THIS ITEM.

C-11. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE REQUIRED TO MOVE MEN AND EQUIPMENT
OUTSIDE TAXIWAY AND RUNWAY SAFETY AREAS AS REQUIRED FOR
AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS.

C-12. ALL LIGHTS, SIGNS, AND CIRCUITS ARE TO BE TESTED "DAILY"
PRIOR TO CONTRACTOR LEAVING SITE TO ENSURE ALL ITEMS ARE
DEEMED TO BE IN PROPER WORKING ORDER. ALL RUNWAY AND
TAXIWAY CIRCUITS SHALL BE OPERATIONAL PRIOR TO THE
CONTRACTOR LEAVING SITE EACH DAY.

C-13. CONTRACTOR MUST COORDINATE WITH OWNER AND OTHERS
INVOLVED WITH ALL CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS AT THE AIRPORT.

C-14. CONTRACTOR IS SOLEY RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL
PERMITS REQUIRED FOR THE PROJECT PRIOR TO ANY
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

EXISTING CONDITIONS/UNDERGROUND AND CONCEALED FACILITIES

E-1. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY EXISTING CONDITIONS PRIOR TO
BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION AND REPORT TO ENGINEER ANY
VARIATIONS FROM THE INFORMATION SHOWN ON CONSTRUCTION
PLANS.

E-2. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE LOCATION AND
IDENTIFICATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES AND PIPELINES IN THE
CONSTRUCTION AREA. ANY EXISTING UTILITIES OR PIPELINES (ON
OR OFF AIRPORT PROPERTY) DAMAGED BY CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR SHALL
REPAIR ALL UTILITIES/PIPELINES DAMAGED BY CONTRACTOR AT NO
ADDITIONAL COST TO OWNER. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE ASSESSED
A CABLE CUT PENALTY OF $1,000 PER OCCURRENCE.

E-3. FAA CABLES WILL BE LOCATED AND MARKED BY FAA PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR IS TO NOTIFY FAA 30 DAYS IN
ADVANCE SO THAT FAA CAN SCHEDULE THE REQUIRED MARKING
TO PROTECT CABLES DURING CONSTRUCTION. ANY CABLES
DAMAGED DURING CONSTRUCTION WILL BE REPLACED BY
CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR SHALL PAY ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED
WITH THE REPAIR OF DAMAGED CABLES AT NO COST TO OWNER.

E-4. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ALL EXISTING LIGHTING SYSTEMS
THAT ARE TO REMAIN, OR IF TO BE REMOVED, UNTIL THEY ARE
DESIGNATED FOR REMOVAL.

E-5. ANY UNPLANNED, UNAPPROVED, OR ACCIDENTAL SHUTDOWN OR
INTERRUPTION OF SERVICE TO ANY LIGHTING CIRCUIT OR
NAVIGATIONAL AID REQUIRES IMMEDIATE NOTIFICATION OF THE
AIRPORT MANAGER AND ENGINEER BY THE CONTRACTOR. ALL
NECESSARY REPAIRS WILL BE MADE IMMEDIATELY AND AT
CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

E-6. THE CONTRACTOR WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR STAKING AND
GRADE CONTROL OF ALL ELEMENTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION.

TEMPORARY MARKINGS, BARRICADES, TRAFFIC CONTROL

T-1. SEE SPECIFICATION SECTION 01030 AND 01530.

SPILL PREVENTION

ANY LEAKS OR SPILLS OF PETROLEUM PRODUCTS WILL BE THE
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO CONTAIN, CONTROL, AND
REMEDIATE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL
GUIDELINES, ORDINANCES, AND LAWS.

CONTROL OF POLLUTANTS: POLLUTANTS OF POTENTIALLY HAZARDOUS
MATERIALS, SUCH AS FUELS, LUBRICANTS, LEAD PAINT, CHEMICALS OR
BATTERIES, SHALL BE TRANSPORTED, STORED AND UTILIZED IN A MANNER
TO PREVENT LEAKAGE OR SPILLAGE INTO THE ENVIRONMENT.  THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROPER AND LEGAL
DISPOSAL OF ALL SUCH MATERIALS.  EQUIPMENT, ESPECIALLY CONCRETE OR
ASPHALT TRUCKS, SHALL NOT BE WASHED OR CLEANED OUT ON THE
PROJECT EXCEPT IN AREAS WHERE UNUSED PRODUCT CONTAMINANTS CAN
BE PREVENTED FROM ENTERING WATERWAYS.

AN SPCC PLAN WILL BE DEVELOPED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND APPROVED
PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF FUEL TANKS. THIS PLAN WILL REQUIRE THE
FOLLOWING:

1. ALL BARE SOIL AROUND FUELING AREA LINED TO PREVENT
SEEPAGE INTO SOIL. IN ADDITION, A SPILL KIT WILL BE KEPT ON
SITE IN CASE OF LEAKS.

2. TERTIARY CONTAINMENT WILL BE PROVIDED IN THE MOBILE TRUCK
AREA.

3. SECONDARY CONTAINMENT WILL BE PROVIDED IN THE FORM OF A
CONTAINMENT PAD WITH A VALVE SIZED (OR APPROVED EQUAL)
FOR THE APPROPRIATE REFUELING TRUCK.

Designer:

Technician:

Checked by:

Notes:

Project Number:

ByDescriptionNo.

REVISIONS
Date

Project Name:

Date: Sheet Number:

of

Scale: Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

DECEMBER, 2019

174389

ATLANTA, GEORGIA

FULTON COUNTY AIRPORT
BROWN FIELD

MALSR LIGHT LANE
OBSTRUCTION

-

CLEARING

GN-1

1

N.T.S.

CPC

CPC

CAA

OF QUANTITIES
AND SUMMARY

GENERAL NOTES

1

ADDENDUM NO.11 03/02/2020 CPC

1



LE
E IN

DUSTRIA
L 

BLV
D

M
ARTIN LUTHER KING

 JR. DRIVE

Sd1

Ds3

Ds3

Ds3

Ds3

Ds3

Ds3

Ds3

Ds3

Ds3

Ds3

Ds3

Sd1

Sd1

Ds3

Ds3

Ds3

LEGEND

1. CONTRACTOR TO ONLY CLEAR AND
NOT GRUB STUMPS AND ROOTS.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT CLEAR
WITHIN WETLANDS LIMITS AND
STREAM BUFFERS UNTIL APPROVED
BY AIRPORT MANAGER. WETLANDS
LIMITS AND STREAM BUFFERS SHALL
BE STAKED OUT AND DELINEATED
BEFORE WORK BEGINS.

MAX. LIMITS OF TREE CLEARING

RSA OUTSIDE BUFFERS - 8.6  ACRE

MALSR OUTSIDE BUFFERS - 2.8  ACRE

WETLANDS BUFFERS - 3.3 ACRE

RIVER BUFFERS - 2.6  ACRE

AIRPORT PROPERTY LIMITS

MALSR LIGHT LANE LIMITS

RUNWAY SAFETY AREA

RUNWAY PROTECTION ZONE

50' RIVER BUFFER (TYP)

WETLANDS BOUNDARY (TYP)

PERMANENT SEEDING

SILT FENCE

TC-1

1

1"=200'
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ATLANTA, GEORGIA

FULTON COUNTY AIRPORT
BROWN FIELD
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OBSTRUCTION

-

CLEARING

IMAGERY DATE: JULY, 2018

THE USE OF TRACKED OR WHEELED EQUIPMENT,
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO BULLDOZERS,
LOADERS, SKIDDERS, AND TRUCKS OF ANY SIZE,
SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED IN WETLANDS AND
RIVER BUFFERS SUBJECT TO PROTECTION
UNDER SECTION 404 OF THE FEDERAL CLEAN
WATER ACT, STATE WATERS SUBJECT TO
PROTECTION UNDER THE GEORGIA EROSION AND
SEDIMENTATION ACT, OR THE BUFFER ZONE OF
THE CHATTAHOOCHEE RIVER SUBJECT TO
REGULATION UNDER THE METROPOLITAN RIVER
PROTECTION ACT (MRPA).
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